BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Randy Ognio, Chairman Charles W. Oddo, Vice Chairman Edward Gibbons Eric K. Maxwell Charles D. Rousseau



FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA

Steve Rapson, County Administrator Dennis A. Davenport, County Attorney Tameca P. White, County Clerk Marlena Edwards, Deputy County Clerk

> 140 Stonewall Avenue West Public Meeting Room Fayetteville, GA 30214

Minutes

June 27, 2019 6:30 p.m.

Welcome to the meeting of your Fayette County Board of Commissioners. Your participation in County government is appreciated. All regularly scheduled Board meetings are open to the public and are held on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 6:30 p.m.

Call to Order

Chairman Randy Ognio called the June 27, 2019 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 6:34 p.m. A quorum of the Board was present. Commissioner Eric Maxwell was absent from the Board Meeting. Commissioner Charles Rousseau arrived at 6:56 p.m.

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Vice Chairman Charles Oddo

Vice Chairman Charles Oddo offered the Invocation and led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Acceptance of Agenda

Vice Chairman Charles Oddo moved to remove agenda item #1 and to accept the agenda. Commissioner Edward Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 3-0. Commissioners Maxwell and Rousseau were absent.

PROCLAMATION/RECOGNITION:

1. Recognition of Fayette State Court Interns.

This item was removed from the agenda at the beginning of the meeting.

2. Recognition of awardees for the Fayette County Public Arts Committee 2019 Chalk Art Competition.

Heather Cap and Cameron LaFoy, Fayette County Public Arts Committee Chairman, on behalf of the Board, recognized the 2019 Chalk Art Competition Awardees. Mr. LaFoy acknowledged all of the participants and expressed his appreciation for their creativity and artistic talents. Second place winner, Donna Fields was present to accept her reward.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Second of two Public Hearings on Fayette County's proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2020 which begins
on July 1, 2019 and ends June 30, 2020 and approval of staff's recommendation to adopt the proposed Fiscal
Year 2020 Annual Budget.

Chief Financial Officer, Mary Parrott stated that the request was to approve the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget and subsequently adopt Resolution 2019-09 to officially adopt Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget. Mrs. Parrott added that the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget presentation was the same as the one presented at the first Public Hearing on June 13, 2019. Mrs. Parrott stated that there was one change being recommended to the budget, which involved the Juvenile Judge in the Griffin Circuit. She continued that the State had mandated an additional \$25,000 be added to the salaries and that it was related to the

Minutes June 27, 2019 Page Number 2

fifth Superior Court Judge. Mrs. Parrot stated that the county had been mandated to pay that amount as part one of the four counties in the Griffin Circuit. She stated that the Fayette County case load was 24.9% for the Juvenile Court and the allocated annual amount to contribute was \$6,700; and for the current year FY2020 the amount would be \$3,350 with the Judge coming on January 1, 2020. This amount had been added into the Budget. She noted that this addition to the expenditures, lessened the impact to the Fund Balance which was \$403,295.

Mrs. Parrot stated that the remainder of the presentation were discussion items that would require Board direction. These items included the fifth judgeship impact, Superior Court Judge supplement impact, Constitutional Officer supplement impact, and other supplement impacts. She concluded the budget presentation stating that the General Fund Balance had a positive impact at \$403,295.

The following public comments were made regarding the budget:

Alice Jones stated that although she had not had the opportunity to go over the budget she wanted to express her concern and suggested the Board make sure county staff was being adequately compensated. She added that she was aware of the push to support the county's Public Safety employees but wanted to make sure that the county's line staff was not forgotten in the process.

Tony Parrott asked the Board to delete an item in the budget to curate the Horton Creek artifacts at the Starr's Mill pump station and honor the memorandum of agreement with the Army Corps of Engineers.

Vice Chairman Oddo moved to approve staff's recommendation to adopt the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget with no addition, but with one change to raise the bell curve minimum from 1.25% to 2.5%. Commissioner Gibbons seconded.

Mr. Rapson stated in reference to Mrs. Jones' comments, that this budget would provide a 9.09% pay increase for all Public Safety personnel in Fayette County which included the Sheriff's Office, 911, Fire & EMS, and the Marshal's Office; all post certified officers. He added the goal in providing the increase was to ensure Fayette County maintained its competitiveness in the market when it came to Public Safety. Mr. Rapson stated that for the remainder of county employees, there would be a forced bell curve merit, were employees are eligible for a 1.25%, 2.50%, 3.75% or 5.00% increase based on performance throughout the year. He stated, for reiteration, that Vice Chairman Oddo's motion would change the forced bell curve to allow employees on that forced bell curve to have at least 2.5% increase. He added that the reason for the motion would ensure that no employee would see a reduction in pay because there would also be an increase in the retirement and contribution plan amount. He also stated that the budget would also include \$45,000 for a recreation assessment, which the Recreation Commission was in the process of starting.

In reference to Mr. Parrott's comments, we are moving forward with curating the Horton Creek artifacts and have received appropriate approvals to ensure these artifacts are properly handled and coordinated with the Historical Society.

Mrs. Parrott added that if the Board made the change to the bell curve minimum from 1.25% to 2.5%, it would add \$8,818 to the General Fund expense.

Commissioner Rousseau asked for clarification, if the four positions associated with the fifth judgeship in the Griffin Judicial Circuit was a request or if the positions were mandated.

Mr. Rapson stated, "Yes". He added that as result of the State approving the fifth judgeship, the associated position was mandated by the State to provide support to the judge.

Commissioner Rousseau stated that he wanted to specify that once approved by the State the 'request' would then become a mandate that the County had to act on and fulfill. He stated in explanation to the public, that a bell curve was synonymous with merit; an evaluation of staff performance in any given position. He asked that for clarification, what was the percentage increase for administrative and operational support employees within Public Safety.

Mr. Rapson stated that there were 17 employees in the Sheriff's Office and the proposed merit was a flat 5% increase. He continued that these individuals do receive performance evaluation, however this 5% increase was not based on the evaluations.

Commissioner Rousseau stated that he was not in favor of a 2.5% increase because county staff had to undergo a performance evaluation whereas, Public Safety employees, in similar positions, would have an automatic 5% pay increase.

Commissioner Gibbons agreed with Commissioner Rousseau noting the disparity between employees in similar position receiving the automatic pay increase while others had to undergo a performance evaluation. He stated that the focus of this budget, for him, was to ensure the county's Public Safety employees were appropriately compensated and that he did not want to lose sight of that. He added, however that he would be open to consider 5% increase for all non-safety employees next year.

Vice Chairman Oddo moved to approve staff's recommendation to adopt the proposed Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget with no addition, but with one change to raise the bell curve minimum from 1.25% to 2.5%. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 3-1, with Commissioner Rousseau voting in opposition. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

4. Consideration of Ordinance 2019-04, Amendments to Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, including Section 110-142. - O-I, Office-Institutional and Section 110-173. - Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone regarding the SR 54 West Corridor.

Community Development Director Pete Frisina read the Introduction to Public Hearings for the Rezoning of Property.

Mr. Frisina stated that in February 2019 Planning and Zoning staff and Planning Commission started discussions with an individual regarding an internal access climate-controlled storage facility on SR 54 West. Mr. Frisina stated that based on the discussion staff and the Planning Commission completed a corridor study of SR 54 West and as a result, recommended amendments to the Zoning Ordinance and the Land Use Element and Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. These amendments to the Zoning Ordinance included a Special Development District specifically for SR 54 West in the O-I zoning district and correlated amendments to the existing SR 54 West Overlay Zone. Mr. Frisina stated the Special Development District created the following expanded uses in O-I on parcels with a minimum of five acres: businesses that supply services, equipment and/or resources to the film industry, call center, cellular phone/communication device sales and/or service, computer technology service, sales and/or repair, medical equipment sales, rental and/or repair, restaurant (no drive-through or drive-in), television/radio broadcasting studio, movie/music/media productions or telecommunications, server farm/data center and internal access self-storage facility.

Mr. Frisina added that within an internal access self-storage facility, a minimum of 20 percent of the footprint was required for office, business and building contractor uses. In addition, regulations for Mixed Residential/Office develop would allow Office-Institutional zoning along the frontage of SR 54 with the remainder of the property being developed as residential with a requirement that the concept plan depict how the entire property would be developed, indicating the division between office and residential zoning districts, the SR 54 entrance and internal connecting road network.

Mr. Frisina stated that there was also an amendment in the Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone regarding the SR 54 West Corridor, under architectural standards. He added that the Planning Commission recommended seeing the elevation drawings at the time of the zoning request to assist with the request consideration to ensure it would meet architectural standards.

No one spoke in favor or in opposition.

Vice Chairman Oddo asked what an example of institutional use would be.

Mr. Frisina stated that institutional use could be a school or government office. He added that O-I, Office-Institutional standard zoning term referred more to office than it did institutional use.

Commissioner Gibbons moved to approve Ordinance 2019-04, Amendments to Chapter 110. Zoning Ordinance, including Section 110-142. - O-I, Office-Institutional and Section 110-173. - Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone regarding the SR 54 West Corridor. Vice Chairman Oddo seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

5. Consideration of Resolution 2019-08, Amendments to Comprehensive Plan including the Land Use Element and Future Land Use Map regarding the SR 54 West Corridor.

Mr. Frisina stated that in correlation with Ordinance 2019-04 Planning and Zoning staff and the Planning Commission started discussions with an individual regarding an internal access climate-controlled storage facility on SR 54 West. He stated that based on those discussions, staff and the Planning Commission completed a corridor study of SR 54 West and as a result, recommended amendments to the Zoning Ordinance and the Land Use Element and Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan. These amendments to the Comprehensive Plan would correlate with amendments to the O-I zoning district and existing SR 54 West Overlay Zone to expand uses in O-I on parcels with a minimum of five acres. Mr. Frisina added that, guidelines for Mixed Residential/Office developments would allow Office-Institutional zoning along the frontage of SR 54 with the remainder of the property being developed as residential and with a requirement that the concept plan depict how the entire property would be developed, indicating the division between office and residential zoning districts, the SR 54 entrance and internal connecting road network.

No one spoke in favor or in opposition.

Commission Rousseau moved to approve Resolution 2019-08, Amendments to Comprehensive Plan including the Land Use Element and Future Land Use Map regarding the SR 54 West Corridor. Vice Chairman Oddo seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

Chairman Ognio recused himself from discussion of item #6 because of his personal/professional dealings with the applicant and left the Public Meeting room until conversations were complete.

6. Consideration of Petition No. 1285-19, Ognio Holdings, LLC, Owner, request to rezone 18.78 acres from A-R to M-1; property located in Land Lot 232 of the 5th District, and fronts on SR 279 and Old Road.

Mr. Frisina introduced the item. Mr. Frisina asked if the Petitioner was willing to move forward with the Hearing with less than the full Board present.

- Mr. Roger Ognio, of Ognio Holdings, LLC agreed to move forward.
- Mr. Frisina stated that both staff and the Planning Commission recommended approval.
- Mr. Roger Ognio stated that the request met the land use in that area.

No one spoke in favor or in opposition.

Commissioner Gibbons moved to approve Petition No. 1285-19, Ognio Holdings, LLC, Owner, request to rezone 18.78 acres from A-R to M-1; property located in Land Lot 232 of the 5th District, and fronts on SR 279 and Old Road. Commissioner Rousseau seconded. The motion passed 3-0-1. Commissioner Maxwell was absent. Chairman Ognio recused himself.

Chairman Ognio returned to the Board of Commissioners Meeting.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Vice Chairman Oddo moved to accept the Consent Agenda. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

- 7. Approval of staff's recommendation to declare eleven vehicles as unserviceable and sell the assets online utilizing contracted auction services and for all proceeds to be returned to the vehicle replacement fund.
- 8. Approval to authorize staff to acquire all fee simple right-of-way for the proposed sight distance improvements along Antioch Road at Winn Way.
- 9. Approval to authorize staff to acquire all fee simple right-of-way, easements and appraisals for the proposed roundabout to be constructed at the intersection of Countyline Road, Inman Road, S. Jeff Davis Road and Northbridge Road (2004 SPLOST Project R-8A); conditioned on the approval of the intergovernmental agreement with Clayton County.
- 10. Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #1667-B for water treatment chemicals to the low bidders Brenntag Mid-South, Inc., Chemtrade Chemicals and Chemrite Chemicals for a total not-to-exceed amount of \$184,745.00.
- 11. Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #1697-S for Cal-Flo Lime Slurry Solution water treatment chemical to Burnette Lime Company, Inc. for a total not-to-exceed amount of \$160,549.20.
- 12. Approval of the June 13, 2019 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes.

OLD BUSINESS:

NEW BUSINESS:

13. Consideration of a draft Intergovernmental Agreement with Peachtree City for the maintenance of Federal-Aid Path Project PI 012624-Segments A, E1 and E2 and SPLOST Project 17TAI-Segments G1 and G2 or H1, H2 and H3.

Public Works Director Phil Mallon stated that the intent of this request would be to establish an agreement between Fayette County and Peachtree City to facilitate the construction of two path projects along Redwine Road. He added that the first project was a Federal-Aid Path Project (PI 012624-Segments A, E1). Mr. Mallon stated that under this agreement Fayette County would cover all cost associated with the project including design, right-of-way acquisition, construction, and construction management with Peachtree City contributing right-of-way and green space. The second project would be a safe crossing at Redwine Road for families and students who attend Starr's Mill School. Mr. Mallon stated that there had been discussion of a tunnel near the school complex, however that concept was not an agreeable location for Fayette County Schools. Mr. Mallon stated that the concept moved the tunnel construction near the Robinson Road intersection. He added, regarding this project, Fayette County would be responsible for design and construction of the tunnel at that location and it would tie into the current Peachtree City paths.

Commissioner Gibbons asked for clarification that this agreement would be a draft for Peachtree City to review and ratify. Mr. Rapson stated correct. Commissioner Gibbons asked what happened if the agreement was not approved.

Mr. Mallon stated that staff would go back and consider other options for the tunnel project or reallocate those funds to other projects; however, with the Federal-Aid portion there would be limited options, be it a reduced scope project or possibly the loss of the project.

Vice Chairman Oddo moved to approve draft Intergovernmental Agreement with Peachtree City for the maintenance of Federal-Aid Path Project PI 012624-Segments A, E1 and E2 and SPLOST Project 17TAI-Segments G1 and G2 or H1, H2 and H3. Chairman Ognio seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

14. Consideration of Contract #1663-S: Motorola Service & Maintenance Agreement in the amount of \$513,181.83.

911 Director Katye Vogt stated that Fayette County entered into a maintenance and support agreement in 2004 with Motorola Corporation for various technology systems within the 911 Communications Department. She added that as current technology initiatives are implemented (e.g. new mobile radio system and Carbyne call handling system), some Motorola services will be scaled back or eliminated. Ms. Vogt stated that dispatch service, onsite infrastructure response, preventive maintenance and technical support for the current radio system (SmartZone) and the 911 phone system (VESTA) were initially supported on the same Motorola servers and other hardware. Around two years ago, Motorola separated the two systems onto two separate sets of hardware; however, at that time they did not adjust the billing to properly reflect accounting classifications. Ms. Vogt stated that for Fiscal Year 2020, Motorola transferred \$62,052.22 from SmartZone radio system support to VESTA 911 phone system support to properly allocate costs. SmartZone charges were reduced by another \$43,494.39 to reflect transition to the new radio system being implemented by E.F. Johnson Corporation.

Commissioner Rousseau moved to approve Contract #1663-S: Motorola Service & Maintenance Agreement in the amount of \$513,181.83. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

15. Consider changes to the County's defined benefit plan effective July 1, 2019, that will increase the multiplier to 2.0%, calculate final wages based on sixty months of employment, increase participants' mandatory contribution from 2.5% to 5.0% of their compensation and normalize vesting to five years.

Commissioner Rousseau stated that he was a trustee on the ACCG Defined Benefit Board and ask County Attorney Dennis Davenport if he needed to recuse himself from discussion of this item. Mr. Davenport asked Commissioner Rousseau if he felt he could make a decision based upon the information without bias either way. Commissioner Rousseau affirmed that he could.

Mr. Davenport stated that he was fine.

Commissioner Rousseau moved to approve changes to the County's defined benefit plan effective July 1, 2019, that will increase the multiplier to 2.0%, calculate final wages based on sixty months of employment, increase participants' mandatory contribution from 2.5% to 5.0% of their compensation and normalize vesting to five years. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

16. Consideration of changing the County's defined contribution plan effective July 1, 2019, to increase the employer contribution from 3.8% to 5.0% of base salary for employees who began participating in the plan on or after January 1, 2014.

Commissioner Rousseau moved to approve changing the County's defined contribution plan effective July 1, 2019, to increase the employer contribution from 3.8% to 5.0% of base salary for employees who began participating in the plan on or after January 1, 2014. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

17. Consideration of Keith Logan's request to connect to the City of Fayetteville's sewer system.

Keith Logan requested to connect to the City of Fayetteville's sewer system because his septic tank at his property was failing. The cost to replace the septic tank would be \$4,500. Mr. Logan stated that his neighbors to the right and left of his property are in unincorporated Fayette County and are connected to the city's sewer system.

Vice Chairman Oddo moved to approve Keith Logan's request to connect to the City of Fayetteville's sewer system. Commissioner Rousseau seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

18. Consideration of staff's request to apply for a Georgia Emergency Management Agency grant in the amount of \$2,260,418 for the 2017 SPLOST; Stormwater; Category I Project: Longview Dam to bring it into compliance with the Georgia Safe Dams Act of 1978.

Commissioner Rousseau moved to approve staff's request to apply for a Georgia Emergency Management Agency grant in the amount of \$2,260,418 for the 2017 SPLOST; Stormwater; Category I Project: Longview Dam to bring it into compliance with the Georgia Safe Dams Act of 1978. Chairman Ognio seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

19. Consideration of staff's recommendation to award annual bid #1644-B to Faultless Business Center as primary vendor with Rock-It Sand & Gravel, Inc. as secondary vendor for dump truck hauling services for fiscal year 2020 for a not-to-exceed amount of \$346,800.

Roads Department Director Steve Hoffman stated that the intent of this annual contract was to identify a vendor to provide on-call dump truck hauling services.

Commissioner Rousseau motioned to approve staff's recommendation to award annual bid #1644-B to Faultless Business Center as primary vendor with Rock-It Sand & Gravel, Inc. as secondary vendor for dump truck hauling services for fiscal year 2020 for a not-to-exceed amount of \$346,800. Vice-Chairman Oddo seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

20. Consideration of the County Attorney's recommendation to approve a disposition of tax refund, as requested by Travis Harvey, for tax year 2018 in the amount of \$807.76.

Commissioner Gibbons moved to approve County Attorney's recommendation to approve a disposition of tax refund, as requested by Travis Harvey, for tax year 2018 in the amount of \$807.76. Commissioner Rousseau seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Chuck Fuller voiced his concern regarding the Tourist Accommodation Ordinance. Mr. Fuller suggested the Board revisit the approval process for Tourist Accommodation.

Jay Jones stated that he was concerned about the Tourist Accommodation Ordinance within the County.

Joyce Stallworth Patrick stated that she had been personally negatively affected by the Tourist Accommodation Ordinance, with the house next door to her being listed on various sites available to rent. She suggested that the Board please review the process and procedure regarding the Tourist Accommodation Ordinance.

Sheila Louder expressed her concern and frustration with trying to get tar removed from the side of her vehicle, as a result of her driving through wet tar on Kite Lake Road that was being resurfaced.

Alice Jones stated that her deck had some deterioration as a result of carpenter bees and was recently replaced, she added that County staff recently came out to her home to perform an assessment and she wanted to make sure she would not receive a tax increase because of that replacement. Mrs. Jones stated that with the increase in the hot temperatures, she was perplexed as to why Fayette County did not have a Multi-use Center/Complex. She added that the Board should consider a SPLOST to fully fund a Multi-use Center/Complex.

ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORTS:

Mr. Rapson stated that the Tourist Accommodation Ordinance had various loopholes being reviewed and ways to monitor compliance to the Ordinance.

Minutes June 27, 2019 Page Number 8

<u>ATTORNEY'S REPORTS:</u> County Attorney Dennis Davenport stated that there was two items of Threatening Litigation, one item of Real Estate Acquisition and the review of the Executive Session minutes for June 13, 2019.

COMMISSIONERS' REPORTS:

Vice Chairman Oddo moved to approve a soft close for Friday July 5, 2019 for non-essential county employees. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 3-1, with Commissioner Rousseau voting in opposition. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

Vice Chairman Oddo stated that he would like to give the County Administrator the authority to make the decision regarding holiday closures in the future. He expressed his appreciation for Becky Smith and congratulated her on her retirement and wished everyone a happy Fourth of July.

Commissioner Gibbons apologized to the Kiwanis Club in Peachtree City for not being able to make it to the past meeting. He expressed his appreciation for the invitation. Commissioner Gibbons congratulated the Fayette County Administrator and Finance team for a job well done on the 2020 Budget.

Commissioner Rousseau stated the County was continuing to work on the issues regarding the Tourist Accommodation, including the development of a complete process that would involve all the appropriate parties being affected. He added that this was a fairly new "phenomenon" and would have to continually be reviewed. He encouraged and reminded citizens that they can get involved by applying to the various boards, specifically with this issue in mind, the Planning and Zoning Commission. Commission Rousseau expressed his appreciation for County staff on the budget, despite his opposing vote. He explained that he was not in favor of only a 2.5% benefit to employees which was attached to a performance evaluation, when Public Safety employees in similar positions have an automatic 5% pay increase. Commissioner Rousseau stated that he fully supported Fayette County Public Safety and appreciated all the work in developing the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget.

Chairman Ognio thanked staff for all their hard work regarding preparation of the budget. He encouraged citizens to enjoy the upcoming Fourth of July holiday safely. Chairman Ognio advised the Board of a new initiative call the Southern Crescent Chairman Round Table that will meet quarterly.

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

Two items of Threatening Litigation, one item of Real Estate Acquisition and the review of the Executive Session Minutes for June 13, 2019. Vice Chairman Oddo moved to go into Executive Session. Commissioner Gibbons seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:27 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:55 p.m.

Return to Official Session and Approval to Sign the Executive Session Affidavit: Chairman Ognio moved to return to Official Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit. Vice Chairman Oddo seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

Approval of the June 13, 2019 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Ognio moved to approve the June 13, 2019 Executive Session Minutes. Vice Chairman Oddo seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

ADJOURNMENT:

Commissioner Gibbons moved to adjourn the June 27, 2019 Board of Commissioners meeting. Vice Chairman Oddo seconded. The motion passed 4-0. Commissioner Maxwell was absent.

The June 27, 2019 Board of Commissioners meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m.

Minutes June 27, 2019 Page Number 9	
Marlena Edwards, Deputy County Clerk	Randy C. Ognio, Chairman
The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official me on the 11th day of July 2019. Referenced attachments are	eeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, held available upon request at the County Clerk's Office.
Marlena Edwards, Deputy County Clerk	